
United Nations
GENERAL
ASSEMBLY
FOKW-klR!X  SESSION

offrcior  Rrc0ds’

THIRD COMMITTEE
7th meeting

held on
Thursday, 9 October 1986

at 3 p.m.
New York

SUMNARY  RECORD OF THE 7th MEETING

Chairman8  Mr. HAMEH (Netnerlanas)-__I

CONTENTS

AGENDA ITEN 63: IMPLEtWNTATION  OF THE PROGRANME  OF ACTION FOR THE SECOND DECADE TO
COMBAT RACISM AND RACIAL DISCRIMINATlON: REPORTS OF THE SECRETARY-GENERAL
(cont inued)

AGENDA ITEM 84: ADVERSE CONSEQUENCES FOR THE ENJOYMENT OF HUNAN RIGHTS OF
POLITICAL, MILITARY, ECONOMIC AND OTHER FORMS OF ASSISTANCE GIIEN TO THE RACIST AND
COLONIALIST REGIME OF SOUTH AFRICA8 REPORT OF THE SECRETARY-GENERAL (continued)

AGENDA ITEM 88: IMPORTANCE OF THE UNIVERSAL REALIZATION  OF THE RIGHT OF PEOPLES TO
SELF-DETEHMINATION AND OF THE SPEEDY GRANTING OF INDEPENDENCE TO COLONIAL COUNTRIES
AND PEOPLES FOR THE EFFECTIVE GUARANTEE AND OBSERVANCE OF HUMAN RIGHTS: REPORTS OF
THE SECRETARY-GENERAL (continued)

AGENDA ITEM 89: ELIMINATION OF ALL FORMS OF RACIAL DlSCRIMINATION  (continued)

(a) REPORT OF THE COMMITTEE ON THE ELIMINATION OF RACIAL DISCRIMINATION

(b) STATUS OF THE INTERNATIONAL CONVENTION ON THE ELIMINATION OF ALL FORMS OF
RACIAL DISCRIMINATIONr REZORT  OF THE SECRETARY-GENERAL

(c) STATUS OF THE INTERNATIONAL CONVENTlON  ON THE SUPPRHSSION  AND PUNISHMENT
OF THE CRIME  OF APARTHEID: REPORT OF THE SECRETARY-GENERAL

ORGANIZATION  OF WGRK



A/C.3/41/SR.7
Enqlish
Paqe 2

The meetinq  wae called to order at 3.05 P.m.

AGENDA ITEM 83: IMPLEMENTATION OF THE PROGRAMME  OF ACTION FOR THE SECOND DECADE To
COf@AT  RACISM AND RACIAL DISCRIMINATION: REPORTS OF THE SECRETARY-GENERAL
(continued) (A/41/3, 550, 551, 552, 571, A/41/181-E/1986/53  and COrr.lr A/41/607)

AGENDA ITEM 84: ADVERSE CONSEQUENCES FOR THE ENJOYMENT OF HUMAN RIGHTS OF
POLITICAL, MILITARY, ECONOMIC AND OTHER FORMS OF ASSISTANCE GIVEN TO THE RACIST AND
COLONIALIST REGIME OF SOUTH AFRICA8 REPORT OF THE SECRETARY-GENERAL (continued)
(A/41/3, 5731 E/CN.4/Sub.2/19s7/8/Add.l#  A/41/181-E/1986/53  and Corr.1,
A/41/341-S/18065 and Corr.1)

AGENDA ITEM 88% IMPORTANCE OF THE UNIVERSAL REALIZATION OF THE RIGHT OF PEOPLES TO
SELF-DETERMINATION AND OF THE SPEEDY GRANTING OF INDEPENDENCE TO COLONIAL COUNTRIES
AND PEOPLES FOR THE EFFECTIVE GUARANTEE AND OBSERVANCE OF HUMAN RIGHTS1 REPORTS OF
THE SECRETARY-GENERAL (continued) (A/41/433 and Add.1,  A/41/113-E/17760, A/41/282,
607)

AGENDA ITEM 89; ELIMINATION OF ALL FORMS OF RACIAL DISCRIMINATION (continued)
- -(A/41/508,  512, 561 and Add.1,  A/41/93, 167, 177, 178 and COrr.1,

A/4l/lsi-E/1986/53  and Corr.l, A/41/326-S/18049,  Aj41/341-S/18065  and Corr.1,
~/41/607)

(a) REPORT OF THE COMMITTEE ON THE ELIMINATION OF RACIAL DISCRIMINATION

(b) STATUS OF THE INTERNATIONAL CONVENTION ON THE ELIMINATION OF ALL FORMS OF
RACIAL DISCRIMINATION: REPORT OF THE SECRETARY-GENERAL

(cl STATUS OF THE INTERNATIONAL CONVENTION ON THE SUPPRESSION AND PUNISHMENT OF
THE CRIME OF APARTHEID: REPORT OF T1 : SECRETARY-GENERAL

ORGANIZATION  OF WORK

1. Mre. HUTIKU (United Republic of Tanzania)  said that racism and racial
fliecrimination,  which et111  persisted in various forme  throughout the world, were a
nsgation  Of the United Nations Charter which reaffirmed faith in fundamental human
riqhte  and the diqnity  of each person. Racism reached its moat abhorrent form when
it was inetitutionaltzed, as in the case of apartheid in South Africa. The United
Republic of Tanzania had coneintently  appoeed racism and racial discrimination and
had made it unequivocally clear to the south African r&ime that that evil policy
must be abolished. Apartheid was doomed, and the longer it took to come to an end,
the greater would be the misery and the more devastating  the chaos.

2. The etruqqle aqainet apartheid must be a collective effort. It was essential
t?.?t COnCerted  international action should help the black majority in south Africa
to brinq down aparthe=  quickly. The United Republic of Tanzania callti  for
comprehensive mandatory eanctione  aqainet the rlciet  r&qime  of South Africa, under
Chapter VII of the United Nations Charter,

/ . . .



A/C.3/41/SR.7
Enalieh
Paae 3

(Mrs.  Buti4uI  United
Republic of Tanzania)

3 . The “conetructive  enqaqement” policy of the United Steteu Government in
support of South Africa waa a matter of concern. That policy, together w i t h  th+
1 ink established by the United States of America between Namibia’s independence and
the withdrawal of Cuban troops from Anoola,  served as moral boosters to the
Pretoria r&ime  in its murderous and destructive campaian  in southern Africa. She

hoped that the United States Government would urqentlv  consider reviewina those
policies, which simply served to worsen the intransiqence  of the apartheid riqime.

4 . During the two decades since the General Aaeembly had terminated South
Africa’s mandate over Namibia, the racist r&ime of South Africa had persistently
refused to implement the various reeolutione on the qrantinq  of independence to the
Namibian people. Moreover, Security Council resolution 435 !1978)  remained
unimplemented, owing to South Africa’n  intransigence and its refusal to heed the
appeal of the international community.

5 . hith reqard to the Middle East, her dele tion had stressed on many occasions
that a solution of the conflict could be achieved only through the recognition of
and respect for the legitimate  riqhte of the Palestinian people, including the
right to establish an independent State. She again  reiterated her country’s
support for the Palestine Liberation Oraanization as the sole, legitimate
representative of the Palestinian people.

6. As to the war between Iran and Iraa, the Tanzanian avernment  had cncouraqed
and continued to encourage the mediation efforts of the United Nations, the
movement of non-aligned countries, the Islamic Conference and individual countries
which had offered their services, and renewed its appeal to Iran and Iraq to aWee
to a peaceful settlement of their conflict.

7 . In Central America, threats of foreiqn  intervention in Nicaragua  and the arms
buildup on its borders and shores continued to be a source of serious concern to
her country. The threat to Nicaraqua’a  sovereignty, territorial inteqrity  and
national independence resulted from the deliberate refusal of some countrica
outside the reqion to accept the existence of ideoloqi,cal  pluraliem in Central
America. The United Republic of Tanzania would continue C.o reject any attempts by
any Member State to infringe  on the sovereignty of Nicaragua or to undermine its
independerle, and would continue to support the initiatives of the Contadora Group
to br ino about peace and stability in Central America.

8. Mr. CICANOVIC/ (Yugoslavia) said that the struqqle against  racism, rscial
discrimination and apartheid, as well se for the right  of peoples to
self-determination and independence, was in fact the struqqle for the
implementation of the basic principles of the Charter of the United Nation8 and
other international instruments. A number of important international meetinqe held
recently had reiterated once aqain the need to eradicate apartheid, the most
flaqrant form of violation of fundamental human riqhts,  and the determination to
achieve that aoal in order to avoid bloodshed, which miaht have unforeseeable
donoequences  for international peace and security. The Eighth  Conference of Heads
of State or Government of Non-Aliqned Countries had appealed to all Countries  to

/ . . .



A/C.3/4l/SR.7
English
Page 4

(Mr. Cicanovid, Yugoslavia)

join in the qeneral demand for sanctions against the racist rdqime of South

Af r ica . He felt that the sanctions adopted recently ny the United States against
South Africa were a step in the right direction, and he hoped that other countries
would follow suit.

0. As a State Member of the United Nations and a member of the movement of
non-aligned countries, Yugoslavia had always actively nupported  the efforts of the
United Nations and the non-aligned countriee  to eradicate apartheid and bring about
the independence of Namibia. Security Council rasolution 435 (19781 was the onlv
acceptahie basis for a peaceful settlement of the guestion  of Namibia, and he

rejected the so-called linkage between the indepcndance  of Namibia and extraneous
and irrelevant issues, ae well as the policy of constructive enqagement, the aim of
which wae the continued occupation of Namibia by the racist  rdqime  of Pretoria.

10. The international community’s endeavour8 to find a solution to the Middle East
crisis had failed in the past because of Israel’s colonization  policy in respect of
the occupied Arah territories , and its aggressive policy against neiqhbourinq
Staten. An international conference on the M!ddle  East, with the participation, on
an equal footinq, of all interested partiea, including  the Palestine Liberation
Orqanization, the aole, legitimate repreaentative ( f the Palestinian people, would
enhance the prospects for a settlement of the Palestinian problem and the crisis in
the Middle East. Yugoslavia had always supported the realization  of the rights of
the Palestinian people and would continue to iu so in the future.

11. With respect to the documentation for the c’iueter  of items under
consideration, he noted with satisfaction the reports on the implementation of the
Programme of Action for the Second Decade to Combat Racism and Racial
Discrimination. Unfortunately, Yugoslavia had been unahle to send its reply to the
Secretary-General’s note on time, so that his country was mentioned in the report
Only  through other reports. The information provided by the International Labour
Organisation (para. 51) reflected Yuqoslavia’s  efforts to facilitate the position
Of miqrant workers and their children during their etay abroad and make their
inteqration upon return to Yugoslavia easier. As to the references in paragraph 4,
he felt that they were discriminatory , since iila sending of the children of
Yugoslav migrant workers to special schools for ret.arded  children, under the
pretext of their inability to cope with the German language, was unfair, in view of
the fact that those schools were most often designed for physically and mentally
dieahled children. The children of Yugoslav workers were neither of the two.

12. Yugoslavia shared the Secretary-General’s view that efforts should be made to
ohtain additional information from States and organisations  which had not yet
replied, and that a fuller response would facilitate the finalization  of the sbudy
based on a global  perspective of the iaauee  relevant to the item. The position of
the children of ethnic minorities  in a particular State was one of the haeic
indicators of the general position of all the minorities in that State.



A/C.3/4l/SR.7
Enal ish
Paae 5

13. M r .DOWEK  (Israel) said that althouqh Israel identified fully with the
objectives of the Second Decade to Combat Racism and Racial Discrimination, it
would not support its Prcgramme  of Action or take part in its implementation. Had
the relevant resolution been put to a vote in 1985, his deleqation would have voted
aqainet it. Both Decades had been misused to serve interests that had nothina to
do with the struaqle to end apartheid and racism, and as tools for leqitimizina  and
foaterinq anti-aemitism in its most pernicious form; Judeophobia, that wa8 to BaYI
the hatred of the Jews for the mere fact of beinq Jewa. That hatred was not
limited to normal hostility towards minorities but was qratuitous hatred that
demanded justification and ideoloaical  rationalization, which were currently beinq
manifested in the pal icy of anti-zionism. Thus, several bodies of the United
Nations itself, such as the Department of Public Information, the Division for
Palestinian Riqhte  and some Commissions and Committees had officially and oppv~lY
become anti-Jewish aqencies.

1 4 . The Arab countries and the Soviet Union , promotr?re of the rationalisation of
anti-zioniem, exerted tremendous political pressure In international forums to
support many anti-Zionist campaigns and resolutions which they concoted. Their
press was full of anti-Zionist propaqanda, a form of anti-Judaism. In 1780 the
representative of Jordan had stated in the General Assel,rbly  that there was a Jewish
cabal which controlled, manipulated and exploited the rest of humanity. In the
Soviet Union anti-zioniem was much more sophisticated and virulent than in the Arab
countries. A special committee attached to the Presidium of the USSR Academy of
Sciences had been created to supervise and co-ordinate the so-called “struaqle
aqainst  zioniam”. The Soviet Union’s campaign of anti-semitism was extended beyond
its frontiers by means of the wide distribution of anti-Semitic literature and the
many anti-Semitic outbursts by Soviet repreeent&tivea  in United Nations forums,
even includinq  the affirmation of an alleqed collusion between the Zionists and the
Nazis to exterminate all non-Zionist  Jews. The multi-faceted Arab-Soviet
propaqanda was aimed at removinq inhibitions restrainina  open anti-eemitism.

15. The anti-Semitic jihad  of the USSR, Syria and other Arab countr  Les was still
reapinq  its poisonous harvest in the recrudescence of verbal and physical
manifestations of anti-semitism in various countries around the world: attacks on
synaqoques.  Jewish schools, cemeteries and monuments and the kidnappinq, torture
and assassination of Jews. In such circumstances, he wondered  how it could be
claimed that apartheid was beinq eradicated when the same tools forged to combat
*artheld  were brazenly used to leqitimize and foster another form of racism,
namely , anti-semitiem. A distinction could not be made between discrimination
aqainet blacks and discrimination eqainst  Jews. The fiqht against the scourqe  of
racism and racial discrimination in all its forms must be total, absolute and
inflexible worldwide. Israel fully believed in that struqqle  and was wil1inq  to
mobilixe  all its energies to purtlue  it.

16.  Mr. EL-FAWWAZ (Jordan) , speakina on a point of order, stated that the Arabs
did distinquish  hetween Judaism and zionism. The Arabs did not hate the Jewish
people, but were in a confrontation with zionism because of its policy of
occupation of Arab territories.

/ . . .



A/C.3/4l/SR.7
Enq 1 iah
Paqe 6

17. Mrs. BIN THANH (Viet Nam) said that many years after the adoption of the
Declaration on the Grantinq of Independence to Colonial Countries and Peoples and
Of the International Convention on the Elimination of All Forms of Racial
Dircrimination,  the community of nations et111 had to uproot abject forms of racism
and racial discrimination, the most odious beinq the system of apartheid, a crime
aqainst humanlty. At the present time there was no more eloouent  illustration of
the close interaction between the struqqle aqainet racial diecrimination  and the
fiqht for self-determination than that in Namibia and South Africa, which were
sufferinq  the worst denial of the right to self-determination.

18. Self-determination of peoples encompassed national independence and
aovereiqnt  y, the riqht to 1 ive in peace, security from rhe nuclear threat and from
rtarvation  and freedom from the threat of aenocide  and from all forms of oppression
and exploitat ion, in particular racial di~criminatfon , and to choose their own path
to development.

19. The diZflcult  situation in South Africa and Namihia persisted not only because
of Pretoria’s obstinacy, but alao  because of the political and diplomatic support,
military collaboration (includinq  nuclear collaboration and economic co-operation
that were beinq provided to it by certain Western Powers concerned with maintaininq
the status quo, since they had over 1,000 of their transnational corporations
operating in South Africa. V?et Nam commended the report of the Special
Rapporteur, Mr. Khalifa.

2 0 . The riqht to self-determination could not be exercised meaningfully in Namibia
while a handful of transnational corporations were literally in control of the
country’s economic life and reaourcee. For instance, 90 per cent of all mineral
aaaeta,  accountin for three quarters of Namibiaga  exports and half its qross
domestic product, belonqed to three transnational corporations. The practical
siqnificance  of Decree No. 1 of the United Nations Council for Namibia reqardinq
Namibia’s sovereiqnty over its own natural resources could not be overemphasized.
For those  reasons, no oppoaitlon  or reluctance to impose comprehensive mandatory
Banctions,  especially economic sanctions , aqainst South Africa could be justified.
The argument that sanctions would harm the black population was unacceptable since
it was known that foreiqn firms employed only 5 per cent of black manpower and the
population only received the crumbs of their profits. Furthermore, the countries
which used that argument were applying similar sanctions aqainst countries such as
Nicaraqua, Libya  and Viet Nam. Viet Nam, for its part, more than ever extended its
rolidarity  in all fields to the South African and loamibian peoples and to the
front-line States in their struqqle to eradicate apartheid, and it reiterated its
demand for the release of Nelson Mandela and his companions.

21. The exercise by peoples of their riqht to self-determination was aleo beina
impeded by the use of mercenaries and the practice of State terrorism, as was the
case in Angola, Mozambiaue  and esnecially  Nicaraqua. The qrantina of $100 million
to finance aubveraive activities of mercenaries aqainst Nicaraqua showed the
determination of some circles to prevent the Nicaraquan  people from followinq their
chosen path to development. Far from exportinq  revolution, as certain parties
claimed, it was the *contraa’” masters who were in fact exportina
counter-revolution and the violation of human riqhts  by proxy. An end must be put
to that violation of international law as the International Court of Justice had
declared.

/ . . .



A/C.3/41/%.7
Enal iflh
Paae 7

(MCt3. Bin Thanh, Viet Nam)

2 2 . Another blatant example of inetitutionalized racism aided by d major Power was
Zionism, which defied all norm8 of international law with ite practicca  of State
terrorism, aqqression and expansionism. That policy and ita supporter8  muRt  he
unequivocally condemned, since they were denyinq the Palestinian people its
fundamental national riqhta.

23. The unfortunate People’s Republic of Kampuchea alao had been prey to a
relentless conspiracy since its emerqence  from the niqht of aenocide. In that
connect ion, the deleqation of Viet Nam affirmed ire cateqoiical rejection of
Economic and Social Council decision 1986/146  and Commission on Human Riahts
resolution 1986/25  because they constituted an utter diatortion of the reality in
Kampuchea and a deliberate attempt to hoodwink public opinion. For the previous
eiqht years, the people of Kampuchea had asserted their riqht to self-determination
by overthrowinq a genocidal riqime and through sustained qrowth in all fielda,  in
the face of an undeclared war waqed aqainet it with the connivance of more than one
foreign Power. That riqht could be fully quaranteed  only if a political eolution
was achieved whereby Vietnamese forces could be withdrawn and the qenocidal  clique
concurrently removed to enable the people of Kampuchea at last to live free of the
spectre of qenocide  and foreiqn interference. For its part, Wet Nam had done and
would continue to do its utmost to help bring about such a solution for the sake of
the Kampuchean people and thus contribute to peace and stability in South-East Asia.

2 4 . Me. CLARK (New Zealand) recalled that one of the purposes of the Oraanization
was to promote human riqhta and fundamental freedoms for all. Equality and
non-discrimination were ideals that New Zealand had striven to develop and reflect
in ahapinq  its society althouqh it did not claim aa yet to be free of
discr  inlination. What was important was that it acknowledqed  the problem and was
trying actively to eliminate it.

25. One of the most siqnificant  developments which had occurred in the country had
been diecussion  of the proposal to make Maori , the lanqllaqe  of the indiqenous
People of New Zealand, an official lanquaqe. A parliamentary committee had been
studyinq  various aspects of the question..

26. The situation in New Zealand presented a clear analogy  with the international
situation. Constant support for, and reinforcement of the principle of
non-discrimination was needed both at the international and at the national
levels. The General Aesembly had recoqnized the importance of that task when it
had decided, three years previously, to launch the Second Decade to Combat Racism
and Racial Discrimination. New Zealand had fully eupported that initiative and
continued to do so.

2 7 . As far as the Proqramme of Action for 1987 was concerned, the
Secretary-General in his report had made some suggestions. New Zealand was
prepared to consider favourably any euqqeation on future  activities. I[n
particular, it was a positive step forward that among tl activities  of the Second
Decade, qreat priority had been qiven to education and traininq.

28. The central point of the United Nations efforts aqainst discrimination
remained the International Convention on the Elimination of All Forms of Racial
Discriminatioll, to which 124 States were partiea.

/ . . .



A /  .3/4l/SR.7
Ena I iah
Paqe 8

(Ms. Clarx, New Zealand)

29. The obliqation to present to the Committee reqular reports on the
implementation of the Convention auhmitted the practice of Staten parties to
regular international scrutiny and provided an opportunity for States parties to
enqaqe  in a constructive dialoque  with tils experts of the Committee. Her
deleqa~ion  therefore viewed with reqret the cancellation of the thirty-fourth
Prasion  of the Committee. In view of the seriousness of the financial situation,
her Government wa6 also most disappointed that the Committee had not accepted the
recommendation of States Parties that in order to Rave costs, both annual sessions
of the Committee should be held in Geneva. A second concern was the larae number
of overdue reports. A monitorinq  system could not bc nffective  if it was
perpetually out of date. Some rat ionalization of the system was therefore
necessary. One possible solution could be for the Committee to adopt informally a
system whereby States parties were invited to submit full reports only every four
years and supplementary reports every two years.

30. In its effur< LO eradicate racism and racLa1  discrimination, it was
appropriate for Che international community to aive  particular attention to the
IWBt blatant system of racism today, the system of apartheid in South Africa.
Apartheid violated all the principles which the Orqanization wa dedicated to
uphold inq . It must be dismantled. New Zealand urqently c:lled  on Pretoria to heed
the repeated demands for justice and e Tuality. The first steps would be
ilnnediately  to terminate the state of emerqency, to release Nelson Mandela and all
other political prisoners and to brinq  the representatives of the black majority
into the political process on a democratic basis. New Zealand had made known its
will ’ -?ness  to implc.tient  comprehensive mandatory sanctions aqainst South Africa if
ado)- by the Security Lour~cil. In the meantrme it had already implemented
Staqe  ~1 ot the sanctions agreed by the Commonwealth Heads of Government at Nassau.

31. The riqht of peoples to self-determination was proclaimed in the United
Nations Charter. In 1960 the General Assembly had adopted the Declaration on the
Grantinq  of Independence to Celonial Countries and Peoples. New Zealand had voted
in favour of that Declaration and had fully supported itB implementation. It also
had supported resolution 1541 (XV) which set out the factors which determined
whether a Territory was non-self-qoverninq in terms of the Charter and the
Declaration. Tn three of the four Non-Self-Governing Territories for which New
Zealand had or iqinal ly been responsible, that responsibility had been transferred
t0 the peoples of those Territories. Today New Zealand continued to exercise
responsibility for Tokelau , and the Mission which New Zealand had invited to visit
the Territcry  in 1986 had reported in most posit!.ve  terms to the Committee, of 24.

32. The continuinq  denial of self-determination to the Namibian people had been
the subject of a Special Session of the Acseml~ly  just a few weeks aqo. Her
tivernment  would not accept anythinq short of the full implementation of the United
Nations plan for the inde) ndence of Namibia. There could be no alternative to the
implementation of Securit.1’ Council resolution 435 (1978).

/ . . .



A/C.3,‘dl/SR.7
Rnq 1 ish
Paae 9

33. Ms. PULIDD (Venezuela) said that the international community was cryinq  out
for an end to be put to the rdqime built on colonialism and contempt For human
dignity imposed on the <peoples  of Scuth Africa and Namibia. Venezuela had
consistently supported and implemented the measures adoptted  by the United Nations
to eliminate racial diecri~nination  and was a party to the most important
international instruments 3n human riqhts. It was a matter of concern that the
proposals to impose sanctions on the Pretoria rhqime  and to take effective measures
aaainst  it had not prospered in the Security Council. AB part of activities
planned by Venezuela to vxnmemorate  the International Year of Peace, an information
campaign on the fiqht aqainst apartheid had been envisaged, and Mrs. Winnie Mandela
and Archbishop Deemond Tutu had been invited to visit Venezuela. Her Government
reqarded as extremely useful the preparation of the manual referred to in
paraqraph 30 of document h/41/551  and all t.,t! activities conducted by the mass
media to combat racism and racial discrimination, includinq  seminars and studies.

34. Venezuela contributed to various funds to promote th.!  struqqlc  aqainst
apartheid and racial discrimination and to assist the victims of those evils. It
welcomed the fact that the total number of States parties to the International
Convention on thr Elimination  of All Forms c. Racial Discrimination had qrown to
124, hut regrettably, the Committee on the Elimination of Racial Diecrimination  had
been u.lable  to hold the sessions planned for the summer. The work of that
Committee should be qiven wider publicity.

35. Mr. HUANG JiahtE  (China) said that the hrutal policies of South Africa were
the most blatant manifestation of violations of fundamental human riqhts  and were
the root cause of troubles in southern Africa. In spite of the relentless efforts
of the inCernational  community and the United Nations, the South African
authorities, wilfully actinq  in defiance of international opposition and
condemnation, had continued to commit atrocities. Accordinq  to incomplete
statistics, in less than one year, more than 1,000 people had been killed and
20,000 had been arrested without trial and subjected to inhuman treatment.

36. The plight of the Namibian people under the South African r cist rbqime’a
illeqal occupation was also very serious and was a situation that had lasted for
over 70 yrare. It was intolerable that the South African authorities had launched
repeated air, naval and ground attacks aqainst the froht-line States to force  them
to abandon their support for the just struqqle of the people of South Africa and
Namibia. The facts had repeatedly demonstrated the futility of persuasion, mere
condemnation and so-called “constructive engagement”. The internat!onal  community
should exert greater pressure on South Africa while rendering more effective
political, moral and material assistance to the people of South Africa and
Namibia. The pressure for sanctions against South Africa was qrowinq daily, and
any country that assumed a pOBitiOn  of indifference, acquiescence or even
connivance in the face of the atrocities committed by the South African authorities
would only suffer damaqe to its international imaqe. It was encour qinq that an
increasinq  number of countries, includinq some Western countries, had adopted
measures of various kinds. China, which had strictly abided by the relevant United
Nations resolutions by not maintaininq any political, economic or trade relations
with South Africa, took the view that only by completely removinq  the barbaric
system of apartheid in South Africa could the people there enjoy eauality, human
r1ght.s  and freedom and aenuine peace and stability.

/ . . .



A/C.3/4l/SR.7
Enqlish
Page IO

37. Ms. CHOWDHIJRY  (Elanqladesh)  said that her Government had always supported all
efforts for the total elimination of racism awl racial discrimination  and had
advocated tho qrantin9  of Cull political , economic and social rights to the black
majority in South Africa. The obstinacy and intraneiqence of the racist r&ime  of
South Africa in refusinq to reco9nize  the existin  realities must be countered by
an intensification of the combined endeavours of the international community for
the transfer of power to the true representatives of the peoples of Namibia an1
South Africa.

38. Ranqladeah totally rejected the fraudulent bystem  of bantustanization and the
le9ality  of any attempts to perpetuate artificially the division of the people of
South Africa and deny them riqhts  of full citizenship in Their own land. A
concerted campaign must be directed towards the complete and total isolation of the
apartheid rdqime on all fronts. Within its limited capacity, Banqladesh  was eaaer
to contribute its due share, and it maintained no diplomatic, economic or any other
reldtione  with the racist rt&qime  in South Africa.

39. The work of the Ad Hvc Workinq Group of Experts on southern Africa of the
Commission on Human Rights, which examined the situation of human ri9hts  in South
Africa and Namibia, was of particular relevance, and its activities should
contin’le,  particularly those relatinq to the establishment of an international
tribunal  to try persons 9uilty of the crime of apartheid. Her deleqation aave its
full support to the eatabliehment of such a tribunal.

40. One of the important steps taken in 1986 in the context of the Proaramme of
Action for the Second Decade was the seminar held at Yaounde  from 28 April to
9 May 1986. The conclusions and recommendations adopted by the seminar were hiahly
commendable, and ban9ladesh  attached particular importance to the recommendations
relatinq  to the intensification of educational , trainin  and information activities
as well as those callinq  for the immediate and unconditional release of all freedom
f iqhters struqql inq for self-determination and aqs’inst  colonialism, racism, racial
discrimination and apartheid.

41. Ms. ILIC (Yu9oalavia),  referrinq to lnformation 9iven by the Secretary-General
on the eituation  of the Committee on the Elimination of Racial
Di-~rimination  (CERD) (A/41/561 and Add.]), expressed concern that that Committee
had been unable to hold it!. thirty-fourth session. Of 9reater  concern still was
the fact that such a situation had arisen because Member States - 73 of them
accordin  to C-he most recent document - had not paid their contributions 311  time.
That situation called for urqent measures so that CERD would be able to continue
its wcrk.

42. The work of CERD was exceptionally important for the international community’s
stru99le  to eliminate racial diecrimination  and apartheid. In view of the large
number of unpaid contribu’-ions, it should perhaps be recalled that CERD was not
financed from the reqular United NBtions  bud9et. If it could not hold its meetin
and carry out its important tasks for lack of its own financial resources, a way
would have to be found to overcome the existin  situation and create conditions in
which CERD could carry on its normal wcrk. Her dele9ation  proposed addressina  an
urgent appeal to States parties to the Convention to fulfil their financial
obligations  and, towards the same end, explorina the possibility of

/ .I.



b/C.3/4l/SR.7
Enqliah
Paqe 11

(Me.  Ilic, Yuqoe1avi.a)

holdinq an urgent mectina of States parties durina the current session of the
General Assembly. Such d meetin  waa all the more necessary since the next reaul *r
meeting of Statea  parties waa not scheduled until early 1988. Yuooalavia  waa open
to any other suggeationa that would lead to a solution to the exist inq situation.

43. Mrs. MAJID (Pakistan) said that her delegation shared the concerns of the
international community and attached qreat importance to its efforts to eliminate
racism and racial discrimination. The most serious threat to those
abominable aystem  of spsrtheid.- -

44. Pakistan had traditionally lent its moral and material support
peoples struqqlinq  against  any form of oppression, alien domination
discrimination. Its steadfast support to the coura9tous  peoples of

efforts waa the

to the cause of
or
South Africa

and Namibia in their stru9qle  against apartheid emanated from the eternal precepts
of Islamic faith which upheld the equality, fteedom and diqnity of all peoples,
irreapectivt of race, colour or creed , and from Pakistan’s own colonial experience
and struaqle  for independence. Pakistan therefore condemned the Pretoria r&imt
for its abominable policies of apartheid in South Africa and Namibia and demanded
the unconditional release of all political prisoners. It also reaffirmed its
continued support for the South West Africa People’s Orqanization  as the sole
representative of the Nsmibian people.

45. Pakistan condemned Israel’s inhuman and oppressive policies against the Arab
and Palestinian populations in the ciccupied territories and reaffirmed its
solidarity with the Palestinian people. It called on the war Id community to assume
its int, national obligations and to compel Israel to restore the inalienable
rights  of the Palestinian people.

46. Apartheid could not be reformed, it could only be eliminated. To that end,
the imposition of comprehensive mandatory sanctions under Chapter VII of the United
Nations Charter wae imperative. Pakistan supported the Plan of Action of the
Seminar on International Assistance and Support to Peoples and Movements Struqqlinq
against Colonialiom,  Racism, Racial Discrimination and Apartheid held in Cameroon,
which endorsed the objectivea of the Second Decade to Combat Racism and Racial
Discrimination.

47. A s p e c i a l  t r i b u t e  nhotr!d  h e  p a i d  t o  M r . Khalifa, Special Rapportcur of the
Sub-Commisaion on Prevention of Diecrimination and Protection of Minoritiee,  whose
latest .eport  provided a subatantive basis for the adoption of further action.

48. The functiona of the Committee on the Elimination of Racial Diecrimination
should be strengthened so that it could examine the problem of racism and racial
discrimination in all signatory  Statea and, in particular, South Africa. It wae
reqrettablt that, for the first time since its establishment, the Committee had
been unable to hold its summer session and to present its annual report to the
General Assembly. That situation had arisen because a number of States parties to
the Convention had not paid their assessed contributions for a number of years.

/ . . .



b/C.3/41/SR.7
Enyl ish
Paqt 12

(Mrs. Majid,  Pakiat~~n)

49. It was tncouraginq  that the Working Group on the Draftina of an International
Conventton for the Protection of the Rightn  of Migrant  Workers and Their Famtllts
wan makinq progress towards tlaboratino  the draft Convention, to which Pakistan
attached great importance.

50. Pakistan reiterated its whole-hearted support for th objttives of the
International Convention on the Suppression and Punishment of the Crime of
Apartheid and the International Convention on the Elimination of All Forms of
Racial Discrimination. Pakistan hoped that Member States which had not yet acceded
to the latter Convention would do so as soon as possible, in order to aive it
greater univtreality.

51. Mra. MATVEYEVA  (Ukrainian Soviet Socialist Republic) said that it was
extremely important for peoples to be able to enjoy their ricrht to
self-dtttrminatic~n  and independence, for denial of those riqhte  sparked regional
conflicts which aogravated  international tensions.

52. The danqeroua  situation in southern Africa was a matter of arave  concern.
Evente of the past two years had shown the aqortseive  nature of the apartheid
policy imposed by the Pretoria rbqime,  whit’ was usina repression to ensure the
continued aubjuqation of the black populat I, who were the constant victims of
human rights  violations. Apartheid was a crime  aqainat humanity and constituted a
threat to inttrnational peace and security. There could be no peace and stability
in South Africa until apartheid was eliminated.

53. Sane Western countries and trananational corporations which co-operated
closely with the South African r&ime  and enabled it to build up its repressive
machinery were  perpetuating Pretoria’s power and hindtrino  the eradication of
apartheid and the achievement of independence for Namibia. Not only was Pretoria
exploiting  the population’s manpower but it was also plundtrinc  Namibia’s natural
resources. The riqime  offered very favourable conditions to inttrnational
monopol I es, aa the excellent report of the Special Rapporteur, Mr. Khal ira,
showed. The problem of Namibia could be solved only if the Namibian people were
unconditionally guaranteed  the enjoyment of their right to self-determination and
independence, and if the outh bfr ican army of occupation was withdrawn.

54. The riqht of peoples to se1f-dtttrmination  and national independence was alno
being  violated in Palestine , while acts of aoqrtseion  were occurring  constantly in
Lebanon. Her country condemned Tel Aviv’s annexationist policy, the bomhina of
Palestinian camps in order to demoralizt the Palestinian liberation movement, and
the acts of aqqrtasion  in south Lebanon. Peace  and stability in the reaion could
be achieved only through a political agreement involvina all the parties concerned
and based on rtcoqnition  t>f the legitimate rights  of the Palestinian people.

55. The independence of the small Territories muat also be achieved. The size? of
a Territory should not be used as a pretext for denying independence to its
ptopl e. The right of self-determination meant the freedom to choose the economic
and social system best suited to solving a country’s problems. There were
countries uhich openly claimed the right  to pass judaement on the legitimacy  of the

/ . . .



A,&.3/4l/SR.7
Eingl leh
Page 13

(Mrs. Matveyeva, Ukrainian SSR)

Governments of other countries and which exerted undue political, economic and
militsry  influence. To do so, they used State terrorism and even resorted to armed
aggression, as had happened against Nicaraqua, Afghanistan, Kampuchea and Libya.
Her country condemned all attempts to interfere in the internal affairs of other
sovereign States in order to halt and suppress the proaressive  soctal and economic
reforms which were vital to the exercise of a people’s right to
self-.determination. The use of mercenaries was particular cause for concern.

56. The Secretariat had not complied with the request addressed to it in Economic
and Social Council resolution 1986/43. It waB strange that the Special Rapporteur
mentioned in that resolution had not been appointed.

57. The Committee should study the proposal submitted by the Ukrainian SSR to the
General Assembly to the effect that in order to enhance the effectiveness of
efforts to protect the peoples of the world from outside aggression, the General
Assembly should begin working on the concept of the rights of peoples and the
riahta which ConBtituted  the baeia  for implementing human rights (A/4i/PV.23,
p. 32).

58. Mrs. KOZAKOV-MARCOULIIS (Cyprus) said that it was deplorable that, well into
the Second Decade to Combat Racism and Racial Discrimination, millions of people
were still suffering from appalling conditions of hunger, poverty, illiteracy,
oppression, domination and despair because of the colour of their ekin or because
of their ethnic origin, language or’ religion. Human dignity and fundamental human
rights could not be observed selectively. The international community had drawn up
international norms which reflected the wishes of the peoples and Governments of
tha world in that respect. In South Africa, however, the abominable system of
apaitheid persisted and most South African blacks continued to he the innocent
victim8 of a brutal repression and a shameful and inhuman racial diecrimination
which had intensified in the past year. The eradication of apartheid was the
collective reeponsibility  of all the people6 and Governments of the world. The
fact was that all the resolutions, decisions and declarations adopted to eradicate
those ills had not been effectively implemented. Cyprus had no relations
whatsoever with the racist r&gima  of South Africa. The time had come to step up
concerted action and, in particular, to intensify the’arms  embargo and adopt
comprehensive  mandatory sanctions undor Chapter VII of the United Natione Charter,
for sanctions were the last remaining peaceful means to eliminate apartheid. Thoscr
issues must be publicized  and discussed more widely in order to help increase
public awareness of the urgency of the auestion.

59. Cyprus welcomed the valuable work done by the Committee on the Elimination of
Racial Discrimination. It hoped that the Committee’s current financial situation
would be resolved quickly and that all States parties would fulfil their
obligations in that regard. Cyprus endorsed Yugoslavia’s proposal that an urgent
meeting of States parties to the Convention be held during the current session of
the General Assembly.

/ . . .



A/C.3/41/SR.7
English
Page 14

60. Mr. MOHAMMED (Iraq),- - speaking in exercise of the right of reply, said that the
statements of the Zionist representative could not cover up the real situation. It
was an historical fact, well known to the international community, that the Zionist
movement was a racist and expansionist movement which, by reason of its aaaressive
character, associated itself with the South African rdgime  with which it shared
common interests and a similar ideoloqy.

61. For Muslims, the Jewish faith was as respected as any other. Zionism,
however, which was supposed to protect the Jews, actually harmed them. Many Jews
rejected zionism, considering it a racist philosophy, as the yearly demonstrations
opposite the United Nations by Jews condemning the Tel Aviv Government and
rejecting its policies showed. The Jewish people and the Zionist movement were two
separate  and distinct thingsr Judaism was a religion, zionism was an ideology.
T’e State of Israel had been created by the Zionist movement, a political
organization  less than a century old which was trying to change its character from
a religious to a political entity. Zionists set themselves up as representatives
of the entire Jewish people, but that was not true because they had not been
elected legitimately, they had gained control through trickery. Those so-ca 1 led
:epresentat Ives declared tha t Jewe who practised racial discrhinatiOn  were
renouncing t :ir Judaism, but that was precisely what the leaders of the State of
Israel were doing. The founders of zionism had all been atheists who rejected the
Torah. They represented neither Jews nor Semites. Iraq was also a Semitic country
and, viewed from that standpoint, zionism was anti-Semitic.

62. Zionism would lead to destruction, for it had been imposed on the Jewish
people by force, through fraud and terror. Condemnation of xionism was an
international obligation, for that was a movement which differentiated between
peoples. It was not a question of hating Jews but of denouncing zionism and its
asseverations. Jews had lived among Arabs for centuries as citizens with eaual
status. The conflicts had begun through the fault of zionism.

63. Mrs. PCC YANINE (Democratic Kampuchea) , speaking in exercise of the right of
reply, said in connection with the item on self-determination of peoples that the
arrogance of the delegation of Viet Nam in claiming to speak on behalf of the
people of Kampuchc 3 in order to reject the resolution adopted by the overwhelming
majority of Member States of the United Nations showed that that country was
applying an aggressive  and expansionist policy against Kampuchea and other
neighbouring countries in the region. Viet  Naa claimed to have  sent volunteer
forces to Kampuchea to save the Khmer people for humanitarian reasons. She
wondered whether the United Nations Charter contained a principle justifying
Viet Nam’B interference in the internal affairs of Kampuchea-

64. The representative of Viet Nam had spoken of the wonderful arowth of
Democratic Kampuchea, but the occupation had transformed a rice-e mrting Country
into a ruined one. If Viet Nam was sincere, it would have to respect the right of
the .eople  of Kampuches  to oclf-determination, withdraw its troops and allow the

, Khmer people to elect its own government in free elections.
I

/ . . .



A/C.3/41/SR.7
Enql ish
Page 15

(Mrs. Poo Yanine, Democratic
Kampuchea)

65. On 17 March 1986 the President of Democratic Kampuchea had presented a
proposal for achieving a peaceful BOlUtiOI’I  to that problem, giving the Government
of Viet Nam an opportunity to respond to the appeal of the international community
to end the conflict created by its own forces of occupation. Nowhere in the
statement of the representative of Viet Nam was theie any indication of a desire to
heed the relevant resolutions of the United Nations, however, although that would
help to relieve the tense situation in South-East Asia. Viet Nar.1  could not
maintain 4 ts expansionist policy, it must face the consequences of its agaression
and Lenounce  the law of the jungle. Viet Nam had tried to create an Indo-Chinese
federation under Vietnamese control. The fact that there l’ere over 700,000
Vietnamese nationals in Kampuchea bore witness to the *Vietnamization”  plans of the
forces of occupation.

66. Mr. ABOU-HADID  (Syrian Arab Republic) said that he would not have exercised
his right of reply had the representative of Israel not referred to his country and
the friendly relations it maintained with the Soviet Union, which were based on
equality, mutual respect and co-operation.

67. There were many Syrian citizens who professed the Jewish religion, as many
American Senators had found when, on visits to Syria, they had met with members of
those communities. The representative of Israel was trying to deceive public
opinion, presenting Israel as the innocent victim of Arab hatred, fascism and
nazism,  and was attempting to equate zionism with Judaism, saying that to attack
zionism  was to be anti-Semitic, which was not the case. Various studies indicated
that zionism was the result of a colonial expansionist movement in the nineteenth
century, which had affected Jewish communities. That had aiven rise to the Zionist
bourgeoisie, which used the methods invented by capitalisr  .Ind imperialism to
achieve domination over other peoples , subjecting them to its influence. Zionism
Was trying to reinterpret Jewish history from its standpoint in order to rule the
people according to its interests and ambitions, and used its contacts with
imperialism to get rid of all those who hindered the achievement of its aims.

68. Mr. TKRzI  (Observer, Palestine Liberation Grganizatlon)  asked whether the
representative of Israel really claimed to be the spokesrlan  for all Jews,
regardless of their citizenship and of the fact that they enjoyed rights in their
own countr  lee. That would be a perpetuation of aryanism. He also wondered how one
defined a Jew, since even in Israel that issue was far from settled. He wondered
whether the Zionists of Begin’s party who had collaborated with the Nazi rAgime were
Jews, and whether General Amos Yaaron , who had been sentenced by an Israeli Court
for his complicity in the genocide at Sabra and Shatila, was really a Jew or simply
a wild animal. Moreover, General Yaaron had been reinstated in the Israeli army
and received as military attachb  in Washington. Thus, there was collusion between
the United States and Israel with a view to eliminatinq  the Palestine refugees.

69. The representative of Israel had condemned apartheid, but how then Israel
could continue to support the diamond market which brought it over $100 million a
year? He would also like to know whether Israel  had two sets of laws: one for
Jews, regardless of their nationality, and the other for non-Jews, particularly
Palestinians, whether Christian or Muslim, who wanted to exercise their inalienable
right to return to their country.

/ . . .



A/C.3/41/SR.7
English
Paqe 16

(Mr. Terzi, Observer, PM)

70. He wondered how a regime could be more racist and discrimination mute
deplorable, especially when it was institutionclized. Zionism denied the
Palestinians’ inalienable right to live in freedom and achieve self-determination
simply because they were not Jews.

71. Mr. AMSELEM  (United States of America) said that the Government of Viet Nam
was one of the most racist in the world, as the situation of the people of
Kar.tuchea  aA of minorities in Viet Nam, who were subjuaated and tortured by the
Hanoi rdqime,  showed.

72. Since  the representative of Viet Nam had referred to security aqainst the
nuclear threat, he should also talk about the right of the people of Kampuchea to
live free from bayonets and tanks and the Vietnamese occupation, i.e., to live in
freedom and exercise their right of self-determination.

73. Mrs. YOUNG (United Kingdom) said that the countries of the European
Communities attached great importance to the topic under diocussion  but had
complied with the Chairman’s appeal that delegations restrict themselves to two
statements. She hoped that other delegations would make a similar effort so as not
to create an imbalance in the discussion.

The meetinq rose at 6.35 p.m.


